SUPERIOR ENERGY SERVICES INC

Form S-3 March 18, 2005

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 18, 2005

Registration	No	333_
Registration	INO.	333-

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM S-3

REGISTRATION STATEMENT

UNDER

THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

Superior Energy Services, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

	1105 Peters Road	75-2379388
Delaware	Harvey, Louisiana 70058	(I.R.S. Employer
(State or other	(504) 362-4321	Identification Number)
jurisdiction of incorporation	Address, including zip code, and telephone number,	
or organization)	including area code, of registrant's principal executive offices)	

Robert S. Taylor

Copy to:

Chief Financial Officer

William B. Masters

Superior Energy Services, Inc.

Scott D. Chenevert

1105 Peters Road

Jones, Walker, Waechter, Poitevent,

Harvey, Louisiana 70058

Carrère & Denègre, L.L.P.

(504) 362-4321

51st Floor

(Names, address, including zip code, and 201 St. Charles Avenue telephone number, including area code, of agent for New Orleans, Louisiana 70170-5100 service) (504) 582-8278 Fax (504) 589-8278 APPROXIMATE DATE OF COMMENCEMENT OF PROPOSED SALE TO THE PUBLIC: From time to time after the effective date of this registration statement If the only securities being registered on this Form are being offered pursuant to dividend or interest reinvestment plans, please check the following box. [_] If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest reinvestment plans, check the following box. [X] If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, please check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering.

If delivery of the prospectus is expected to be made pursuant to Rule 434, please check the following box.

[]

[]

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

		Proposed	Proposed	
		maximum	maximum	
Title of each	Amount	offering	aggregate	Amount of
class of securities	to be	price per	offering	registration
to be registered Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share	registered ^{(1) (2)}	unit ⁽³⁾	price ^{(1) (2) (3)}	fee ⁽⁵⁾
Preferred Stock, par value \$0.01 per share				
Depositary Shares				
Total ⁽⁴⁾	\$292,290,983	100%	\$292,290,983	\$34,403

- (1) Pursuant to Rule 457(o) under the Securities Act of 1933, which permits the registration fee to be calculated on the basis of the maximum offering price of all securities listed, and pursuant to General Instruction II.D. of Form S-3 under the Securities Act of 1933, the table does not specify information as to the amount of any particular security to be registered.
- (2) There are being registered hereunder such indeterminate number of shares of common stock, preferred stock and depositary shares as may be offered from time to time, with an aggregate offering price not to exceed \$292,290,983. The securities registered hereunder also include such indeterminate number of shares of common stock as may be issued upon conversion of or exchange for preferred stock or depositary shares that provide for conversion or exchange or pursuant to antidilution provisions of any such securities.
- (3) The proposed maximum aggregate offering price per class of security and per unit will be determined from time to time by the registrant in connection with the issuance by the registrant of the securities registered hereunder and is not specified as to each class of security pursuant to General Instruction II.D. of Form S-3 under the Securities Act of 1933.
- (4) In no event will the aggregate offering price of all securities issued from time to time by the registrant for its own account pursuant to this Registration Statement exceed \$292,290,983 or the equivalent thereof in one or more foreign currencies, foreign currency units or composite currencies. The securities registered hereunder may be sold separately or as units with other securities registered hereby.
- (5) Calculated pursuant to Rule 457(o) under the Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to Rule 429 under the Securities Act of 1933, in addition to the \$292,290,983 aggregate number of securities being registered hereunder, the prospectus contained herein will also relate to \$57,709,017 aggregate amount of common stock, preferred stock and depositary shares registered under the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (No. 333-35286), previously filed by the registrant and remaining unsold. The filing fee associated with such prior registration was \$79,200, of which \$15,235 relates to the remaining unsold securities under such earlier registration statement.

Pursuant to Rule 429 under the Securities Act of 1933, the prospectus contained in this Registration Statement relates to the \$292,290,983 amount of securities registered hereby and to remaining unsold \$57,709,017 amount of common stock, preferred stock and depositary shares registered by the registrant pursuant to Registration Statement No. 333-35286 filed by the Registrant on April 20, 2000 and declared effective by the SEC on April 28, 2000 (the "Prior Registration Statement"). This Registration Statement, which is a new registration statement, also constitutes Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Prior Registration Statement.

The registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this registration

statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until this registration statement shall become effective on such date as the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the Registration Statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and we are not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED MARCH 18, 2005

Prospectus

Superior Energy Services, Inc.

\$350,000,000

Common Stock Preferred Stock Depositary Shares

We may offer and sell from time to time up to \$350,000,000 in the aggregate of:

- shares of our common stock, par value \$.001 per share;
- ♦ shares of our preferred stock, par value \$.01 per share;
- shares of our preferred stock, par value \$.01 per share, that may be represented by depositary shares; and
- any combination of the foregoing.

We may offer the securities in one or more series, in amounts, at prices and on terms determined at the time of offering. We will provide the specific terms of any securities we actually offer for sale in supplements to this prospectus.

You should carefully read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement, together with additional information described under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information" before you invest in the securities. This prospectus may not be used to effect sales of securities unless accompanied by a prospectus supplement.

We may sell these securities to or through one or more underwriters, broker-dealers or agents or directly to purchasers on a continuous or delayed basis. The names of any underwriters or agents will be stated in a prospectus supplement regarding that offering.

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "SPN."

See "Risk Factors" beginning on page 3 for information that you should consider before investing in the securities

.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved these securities or passed on the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense

.

The date of this prospectus is ______, 2005

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	1
THE COMPANY]
USE OF PROCEEDS	2
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERENCE DIVIDENDS	2
RISK FACTORS	3
DESCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK	11
DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED STOCK	13
DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES	14
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	17
LEGAL MATTERS	18
EXPERTS	18
NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	18
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	19

When used in this prospectus, the terms "Superior," "we," "our," and "us" refer to Superior Energy Services, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise specified.

i

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we have filed with the SEC using a "shelf" registration process on Form S-3. Under this shelf registration, we may sell the securities described in this prospectus. The registration statement that contains this prospectus (including the exhibits to the registration statement) also contains additional information about us and the securities we may offer under this prospectus. You can read that registration statement at the SEC website at http://www.sec.gov or at the SEC office mentioned under the heading "Where You Can Find More

Information."

This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities we may offer. Each time we sell any of these securities, we will provide one or more prospectus supplements containing specific information about the terms of that offering. Any prospectus supplements may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. If information in any prospectus supplement is inconsistent with the information in this prospectus, then the information in that prospectus supplement will apply and, where applicable, supersede the information in this prospectus. You should carefully read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with additional information described under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information" before you invest.

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different or additional information. If anyone provides you with different or additional information, you should not rely on it.

You should not assume that the information in this prospectus, any accompanying prospectus supplement or any document incorporated by reference is accurate as of any date other than the date on its front cover.

THE COMPANY

We are a leading provider of specialized oilfield services and equipment focused on serving the production-related needs of oil and gas companies primarily in the Gulf of Mexico and the drilling-related needs of oil and gas companies in the Gulf of Mexico and in select international market areas. We also own and operate, through our subsidiary SPN Resources, LLC, mature oil and gas properties in the Gulf of Mexico. Our business is organized into five segments consisting of well intervention services, marine services, rental tools, other oilfield services and oil and gas operations. We believe that we are one of the few companies in the Gulf of Mexico capable of providing the services, tools and liftboats necessary to maintain, enhance and extend the life of offshore producing wells, as well as plug and abandonment services at the end of their life cycle. We believe that our ability to provide our customers with multiple services and to coordinate and integrate their delivery allows us to maximize efficiency, reduce lead-time and provide cost-effective solutions for our customers.

Over the past several years, we have significantly expanded the geographic scope of our operations and the range of production-related services we provide through both internal growth and strategic acquisitions. We have expanded our geographic focus to select international market areas and added complementary product and service offerings to our existing business lines. Currently, we provide a full range of products and services for our customers, including well intervention services, marine services, rental tools and other oilfield services.

In December 2003, we began acquiring mature, shallow water oil and gas properties in the Gulf of Mexico to provide our customers with a cost-effective alternative to the decommissioning process. Our main objective in acquiring oil and gas properties is to provide additional opportunities for our well intervention services and our platform management business. We acquire older, more mature properties since they need many of the production-enhancement services we provide. We use our production-related services to enhance production and, at the end of a property's economic life, use our assets to plug wells and decommission properties. By owning these properties, we can choose when we perform much of the work, helping increase the utilization of our assets and services. We do not intend to risk any capital by participating in exploratory drilling activities.

Our principal executive offices are located at 1105 Peters Road, Harvey, Louisiana 70058. Our telephone number is (504) 362-4321, and we maintain an Internet site at http://www.superiorenergy.com that contains information about our business.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Unless the applicable prospectus supplement states otherwise, we intend to use the net proceeds from our sale of securities offered by this prospectus for general corporate purposes, which may include working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions and reducing indebtedness. We may temporarily invest the net proceeds from any offering of securities or use the net proceeds to repay short-term debt until we can use them for their stated purposes.

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERENCE DIVIDENDS

Our consolidated ratios of earnings to fixed charges for each of the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,								
2000	2001	2002	2003	2004				
3.67	5.11	2.51	3.12	3.48				

For the purpose of computing the ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preference dividends, earnings are defined as income from continuing operations before income taxes, plus fixed charges, less capitalized interest. Fixed charges are the sum of interest on all indebtedness, amortization of debt issuance cost, and that portion of rental expense which we believe to be representative of an interest factor.

For the periods indicated above, we had no outstanding shares of preferred stock, and thus we were not required to make any dividend payments.

2

RISK FACTORS

An investment in our securities involves significant risks. You should carefully consider the following risk factors before you decide to buy any of our securities. You should also carefully read and consider all of the information we have included, or incorporated by reference, in this prospectus before you decide to buy our securities.

We are subject to the cyclical nature of the oil and gas industry.

Our business depends primarily on the level of activity by the oil and gas companies in the Gulf of Mexico and along the Gulf Coast. This level of activity has traditionally been volatile as a result of fluctuations in oil and gas prices and their uncertainty in the future. The purchases of the products and services we provide are, to a substantial extent, deferrable in the event oil and gas companies reduce capital expenditures. Therefore, the willingness of our customers to make expenditures is critical to our operations. The levels of such capital expenditures are influenced by:

- oil and gas prices and industry perceptions of future prices;
- the cost of exploring for, producing and delivering oil and gas;
- the ability of oil and gas companies to generate capital;
- the sale and expiration dates of offshore leases;

- ♦ the discovery rate of new oil and gas reserves; and
- local and international political and economic conditions.

Although activity levels in production and development sectors of the oil and gas industry are less immediately affected by changing prices and as a result, less volatile than the exploration sector, producers generally react to declining oil and gas prices by reducing expenditures. This has in the past and may in the future, adversely affect our business. We are unable to predict future oil and gas prices or the level of oil and gas industry activity. A prolonged low level of activity in the oil and gas industry will adversely affect the demand for our products and services and our financial condition and results of operations.

Our industry is highly competitive.

We compete in highly competitive areas of the oilfield services industry. The products and services of each of our principal industry segments are sold in highly competitive markets, and our revenues and earnings may be affected by the following factors:

- changes in competitive prices;
 - fluctuations in the level of activity in major markets;
 - an increased number of liftboats in the Gulf of Mexico;
 - general economic conditions; and
 - governmental regulation.

We compete with the oil and gas industry's largest integrated and independent oilfield service providers. We believe that the principal competitive factors in the market areas that we serve are price, product and service quality, availability and technical proficiency.

3

Our operations may be adversely affected if our current competitors or new market entrants introduce new products or services with better features, performance, prices or other characteristics than our products and services. Further, additional liftboat capacity in the Gulf of Mexico would increase competition for that service. Competitive pressures or other factors also may result in significant price competition that could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. Finally, competition among oilfield service and equipment providers is also affected by each provider's reputation for safety and quality. Although we believe that our reputation for safety and quality service is good, we cannot guarantee that we will be able to maintain our competitive position.

We may not be able to acquire oil and gas properties to increase our asset utilization.

Our strategy to increase our asset utilization depends on our ability to find, acquire, manage and decommission mature Gulf of Mexico oil and gas properties. Factors that may hinder our ability to acquire these properties include competition, prevailing oil and natural gas prices and the number of properties for sale. Another factor that could hinder our ability to acquire oil and gas properties is our ability to assume additional decommissioning liabilities without posting bonds or providing other financial security to the U.S. Department of Interior, Minerals Management Service, or MMS, or the sellers of these properties, the cost of which may render our proposal unattractive to us or the sellers. In addition, our ability to assume obligations relating to plugging and abandonment liability is currently

limited by the terms of our credit facility to the lesser of \$160 million gross future value at any one time in the aggregate or the amount permitted by MMS. In certain instances, the sellers of these properties may have continuing obligations to us that are unsecured, and although we believe these arrangements represent minimal credit risk, we cannot assure you that any seller will not become a credit risk in the future. If we are unable to find and acquire properties meeting our criteria on acceptable terms to us, we will not be able to increase the utilization of our assets and services during seasonal downtime and when we have available equipment not being utilized by our traditional customer base. We cannot assure you that we will be able to locate and acquire such properties.

Estimates of our oil and gas reserves and potential liabilities relating to our oil and gas properties may be significantly incorrect.

We acquire mature oil and gas properties in the Gulf of Mexico on an "as is" basis and assume all plugging, abandonment, restoration and environmental liability with limited remedies for breaches of representations and warranties. In addition, we acquire these properties without obtaining bonds, other than as required by MMS to secure the plugging and abandonment obligations. Acquisitions of these properties require an assessment of a number of factors beyond our control, including estimates of recoverable reserves, future oil and gas prices, operating costs and potential environmental and plugging and abandonment liabilities. These assessments are complex and inherently imprecise, and, with respect to estimates of oil and gas reserves, require significant decisions and assumptions in the evaluation of available geological, geophysical, engineering and economic data for each reservoir. In addition, since these properties are typically near the end of their economic lives, our operations may be more susceptible to equipment failure or mechanical problems. In connection with these assessments, we perform due diligence reviews that we believe are generally consistent with industry practices. However, our reviews may not reveal all existing or potential problems. In addition, our reviews may not permit us to become sufficiently familiar with the properties to fully assess their deficiencies and capabilities. We may not always discover structural, subsurface, environmental or other problems that may exist or arise.

Actual future production, cash flows, development expenditures, operating and abandonment expenses and quantities of recoverable oil and gas reserves may vary substantially from those estimated by us and any significant variance in these assumptions could materially affect the estimated quantity and value of our proved reserves. Therefore, the risk is that we may overestimate the value of economically recoverable reserves and/or underestimate the cost of plugging wells and abandoning production facilities. If costs of abandonment are materially greater or actual reserves are materially lower than our estimates, they could have an adverse effect on earnings.

4

We are susceptible to adverse weather conditions in the Gulf of Mexico.

Our operations are directly affected by the seasonal differences in weather patterns in the Gulf of Mexico. These differences may result in increased operations in the spring, summer and fall periods and a decrease in the winter months. The seasonality of oil and gas industry activity as a whole in the Gulf Coast region also affects our operations and rentals and sales of equipment. Weather conditions generally result in higher activity in the spring, summer and fall months with the lowest activity in winter months. The rainy weather, tropical storms, hurricanes and other storms prevalent in the Gulf of Mexico and along the Gulf Coast during the year, such as Hurricane Ivan in September 2004, may also affect our operations. Accordingly, our operating results may vary from quarter to quarter, depending on factors outside of our control. As a result, full year results are not likely to be a direct multiple of any particular quarter or combination of quarters.

We depend on key personnel.

Our success depends to a great degree on the abilities of our key management personnel, particularly our Chief Executive Officer and other high-ranking executives. The loss of the services of one or more of these key employees could adversely affect us.

We depend on significant customers.

We derive a significant amount of our revenue from a small number of major and independent oil and gas companies. Although we did not have a single customer account for more than 10% of our total revenue in 2004, in 2003 and 2002, sales to a single customer accounted for approximately 11% and 12% of our total revenue, respectively, primarily in our well intervention and other oilfield service segments. Our inability to continue to perform services for a number of our large existing customers, if not offset by sales to new or other existing customers could have a material adverse effect on our business and operations.

The dangers inherent in our operations and the limits on insurance coverage could expose us to potentially significant liability costs

and materially interfere with the performance of our operations.

Our operations are subject to numerous operating risks inherent in the oil and gas industry that could result in substantial losses. These risks include:

- ♦ fires:
- explosions, blowouts, and cratering;
- ♦ well blowouts;
- mechanical problems, including pipe failure;
- abnormally pressured formations; and
- environmental accidents, including oil spills, gas leaks or ruptures, uncontrollable flows of oil, gas, brine or well fluids, or other discharges of toxic gases or other pollutants.

Our liftboats are also subject to operating risks such as catastrophic marine disaster, adverse weather conditions, collisions and navigation errors.

The occurrence of these risks could result in substantial losses due to personal injury, loss of life, damage to or destruction of wells, production facilities or other property or equipment, or damages to the environment. In addition, certain of our employees who perform services on offshore platforms and vessels are covered by provisions of the Jones Act, the Death on the High Seas Act and general maritime law. These laws make the liability limits established by state workers' compensation laws inapplicable to these employees and instead permit them or their

5

representatives to pursue actions against us for damages for job-related injuries. In such actions, there is generally no limitation on our potential liability.

Any litigation arising from a catastrophic occurrence involving our services, equipment or oil and gas production operations could result in large claims for damages. The frequency and severity of such incidents affect our operating costs, insurability and relationships with customers, employees and regulators. Any increase in the frequency or

severity of such incidents, or the general level of compensation awards with respect to such incidents, could affect our ability to obtain projects from oil and gas companies or insurance. We maintain several types of insurance to cover liabilities arising from our services, including onshore and offshore non-marine operations, as well as marine vessel operations. These policies include primary and excess umbrella liability policies with limits of \$50 million dollars per occurrence. For our oil and gas operations, we also maintain control of well, operators extra expense and pollution liability coverage, to include our liabilities under the federal Oil Pollution Act of 1990, or OPA. Limits maintained for these operations are \$35 million per occurrence for well control incidents, while the limit is \$50 million per occurrence for non-well control events. We also maintain what we believe is prudent levels of property insurance on our physical assets, including marine vessels, offshore production facilities, and operating equipment. However, we cannot guarantee that we will be able to maintain adequate insurance in the future at rates we consider reasonable or that our insurance coverage will be adequate to cover future claims that may arise. Successful claims for which we are not fully insured may adversely affect our working capital and profitability. In addition, changes in the insurance industry have generally led to higher insurance costs and decreased availability of coverage. The availability of insurance covering risks we and our competitors typically insure against may decrease, and the insurance that we are able to obtain may have higher deductibles, higher premiums and more restrictive policy terms.

The occurrence of any of these risks could also subject us to clean-up obligations, regulatory investigation, penalties or suspension of operations. Further, our operations may be materially curtailed, delayed or canceled as a result of numerous factors, including:

- the presence of unanticipated pressure or irregularities in formations;
- equipment failures or accidents;
- ♦ weather conditions;
- compliance with governmental requirements; and
- shortages or delays in obtaining drilling rigs or in the delivery of equipment and services.

Oil and gas prices are volatile, and low prices could have a material adverse impact on our business.

Our revenues, profitability and future growth and the carrying value of our oil and gas properties depend substantially on the prices we realize for our production. Our realized prices also affect the amount of cash flow available for capital expenditures and our ability to borrow and raise additional capital.

Historically, the markets for oil and gas have been volatile, and they are likely to continue to be volatile in the future. Among the factors that can cause this volatility are:

- worldwide or regional demand for energy, which is affected by economic conditions;
- ♦ the domestic and foreign supply of oil and gas;
- weather conditions;
- domestic and foreign governmental regulations;
- ♦ political conditions in oil and gas producing regions;

6

- ♦ the ability of members of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries to agree upon and maintain oil prices and production levels; and
- the price and availability of alternative fuel sources.

It is impossible to predict oil and gas price movements with certainty. Lower oil and gas prices may not only decrease our revenues on a per unit basis but also may reduce the amount of oil and gas that we can produce economically. A substantial or extended decline in oil or gas prices may materially and adversely affect our future business, financial

condition, results of operations, liquidity and ability to finance planned capital expenditures. Further, oil prices and gas prices do not necessarily move together.

Our oil and gas revenues are subject to commodity price risk.

We are subject to market risk exposure in the pricing applicable to our oil and gas production. Considering the historical and continued volatility and uncertainty of prices received for oil and gas production, we have and will continue to enter into hedging arrangements to reduce our exposure to decreases in the prices of natural gas and oil.

Hedging arrangements expose us to risk of significant financial loss in some circumstances including circumstances where:

- there is a change in the expected differential between the underlying price in the hedging agreement and actual prices received;
- our production and/or sales of natural gas are less than expected;
- payments owed under derivative hedging contracts typically come due prior to receipt of the hedged month's production revenue; and
- the other party to the hedging contract defaults on its contract obligations.

We cannot assure you that the hedging transactions we enter into will adequately protect us from declines in the prices of natural gas and oil. In addition, our hedging arrangements will limit the benefit we would receive from increases in the prices for natural gas and oil.

Factors beyond our control affect our ability to market oil and gas.

The availability of markets and the volatility of product prices are beyond our control and represent a significant risk. The marketability of our production depends upon the availability and capacity of gas gathering systems, pipelines and processing facilities. The unavailability or lack of capacity of these systems and facilities could result in the shut-in of producing wells or the delay or discontinuance of development plans for properties. Our ability to market oil and gas also depends on other factors beyond our control, including:

- ♦ the level of domestic production and imports of oil and gas;
- the proximity of gas production to gas pipelines;
- ♦ the availability of pipeline capacity;
- the demand for oil and natural gas by utilities and other end users;
- ♦ the availability of alternate fuel sources;
- state and federal regulation of oil and gas marketing; and

7

 $\mbox{\Large \bullet}$ federal regulation of gas sold or transported in interstate commerce.

If these factors were to change dramatically, our ability to market oil and gas could be adversely affected.

We are vulnerable to the potential difficulties associated with rapid expansion

.

We have grown rapidly over the last several years through internal growth and acquisitions of other companies. We believe that our future success depends on our ability to manage the rapid growth that we have experienced and the

demands from increased responsibility on our management personnel. The following factors could present difficulties to us:

- ♦ lack of sufficient executive-level personnel;
- ♦ increased administrative burden; and
- increased logistical problems common to large, expansive operations.

If we do not manage these potential difficulties successfully, our operating results could be adversely affected. The historical financial information incorporated herein is not necessarily indicative of the results that would have been achieved had we been operated on a fully integrated basis or the results that may be realized in the future.

Our inability to control the inherent risks of acquiring businesses could adversely affect our operations.

Acquisitions have been and we believe will continue to be a key element of our business strategy. We cannot assure you that we will be able to identify and acquire acceptable acquisition candidates on terms favorable to us in the future. We may be required to incur substantial indebtedness to finance future acquisitions and also may issue equity securities in connection with such acquisitions. Such additional debt service requirements may impose a significant burden on our results of operations and financial condition. The issuance of additional equity securities could result in significant dilution to our stockholders. We cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully consolidate the operations and assets of any acquired business with our own business. Acquisitions may not perform as expected when the acquisition was made and may be dilutive to our overall operating results. In addition, our management may not be able to effectively manage our increased size or operate a new line of business.

The nature of our industry subjects us to compliance with regulatory and environmental laws.

Our business is significantly affected by state and federal laws and other regulations relating to the oil and gas industry in general, and more specifically with respect to the environment, health and safety, waste management and the manufacture, storage, handling and transportation of hazardous wastes, and by changes in and the level of enforcement of such laws.

The production of oil and gas is subject to regulation under a wide range of local, state and federal statutes, rules, orders and regulations. Federal, state and local statutes and regulations require permits for drilling operations, drilling bonds and plugging and abandonment and reports concerning operations.

Our oil and gas operations are conducted on federal leases that are administered by MMS and are required to comply with the regulations and orders promulgated by MMS under the Outer Continental Shelf Lands Act. MMS regulations also establish construction requirements for production facilities located on federal offshore leases and govern the plugging and abandonment of wells and the removal of production facilities from these leases. Under limited circumstances, MMS could require us to suspend or terminate our operations on a federal lease. MMS also establishes the basis for royalty payments due under federal oil and natural gas leases through regulations issued under applicable statutory authority.

8

The failure to comply with these rules and regulations can result in substantial penalties. The regulatory burden on the oil and natural gas industry increases our cost of doing business and, consequently, affects our profitability.

Our oil and gas operations are also subject to certain requirements under OPA. Under OPA and its implementing regulations, "responsible parties," including owners and operators of certain vessels and offshore facilities, are strictly liable for damages resulting from spills of oil and other related substances in U.S. waters, subject to certain limitations. OPA also requires a responsible party to submit proof of its financial ability to cover environmental cleanup and restoration costs that could be incurred in connection with an oil spill. Further, OPA imposes other requirements, such as the preparation of oil spill response plans. In the event of a substantial oil spill originating from one of our facilities, we could be required to expend potentially significant amounts of capital which could have a material adverse effect on our future operations and financial results.

We have potential environmental liabilities with respect to our offshore and onshore operations, including our environmental cleaning services. Certain environmental laws provide for joint and several liabilities for remediation of spills and releases of hazardous substances. These environmental statutes may impose liability without regard to negligence or fault. In addition, we may be subject to claims alleging personal injury or property damage as a result of alleged exposure to hazardous substances. We believe that our present operations substantially comply with applicable federal and state pollution control and environmental protection laws and regulations. We also believe that compliance with such laws has had no material adverse effect on our operations. However, such environmental laws are changed frequently. Sanctions for noncompliance may include revocation of permits, corrective action orders, administrative or civil penalties and criminal prosecution. We are unable to predict whether environmental laws will materially adversely affect our future operations and financial results.

Federal and state laws that require owners of non-producing wells to plug the well and remove all exposed piping and rigging before the well is permanently abandoned significantly affect the demand for our plug and abandonment services. A decrease in the level of enforcement of such laws and regulations in the future would adversely affect the demand for our services and products. In addition, demand for our services is affected by changing taxes, price controls and other laws and regulations relating to the oil and gas industry generally. The adoption of laws and regulations curtailing exploration and development drilling for oil and gas in our areas of operations for economic, environmental or other policy reasons could also adversely affect our operations by limiting demand for our services.

We are unable to predict the level of enforcement of existing laws and regulations, how such laws and regulations may be interpreted by enforcement agencies or court rulings, or whether additional laws and regulations will be adopted. We are also unable to predict the effect that any such events may have on us, our business, or our financial condition.

A terrorist attack or armed conflict could harm our business.

Terrorist activities, anti-terrorist efforts and other armed conflict involving the U.S. may adversely affect the U.S. and global economies and could prevent us from meeting our financial and other obligations. If any of these events occur, the resulting political instability and societal disruption could reduce overall demand for oil and natural gas, potentially putting downward pressure on demand for our services and causing a reduction in our revenues. Oil and gas related facilities could be direct targets of terrorist attacks, and our operations could be adversely impacted if infrastructure integral to customers' operations is destroyed or damaged. Costs for insurance and other security may increase as a result of these threats, and some insurance coverage may become more difficult to obtain, if available at all.

We will be subject to additional political, economic, and other uncertainties as we expand our international operations.

A key element of our business strategy is to continue our international expansion into international oil and gas producing areas such as Mexico, Trinidad, Venezuela, West Africa, the Middle East, Australia, Eastern Canada and the North Sea. Our international operations are subject to a number of risks inherent in any business operating in foreign countries including, but not limited to:

- political, social and economic instability;
- potential seizure or nationalization of assets;
- ♦ increased operating costs;
- ♦ modification or renegotiating of contracts;
- ♦ import-export quotas;
- currency fluctuations; and
- other forms of government regulation which are beyond our control.

Our operations have not yet been affected to any significant extent by such conditions or events, but as our international operations expand, the exposure to these risks will increase. We could, at any one time, have a significant amount of our revenues generated by operating activity in a particular country. Therefore, our results of operations could be susceptible to adverse events beyond our control that could occur in the particular country in which we are conducting such operations. We anticipate that our contracts to provide services internationally will generally provide for payment in U.S. dollars and that we will not make significant investments in foreign facilities. To the extent we make investments in foreign facilities or receive revenues in currencies other than U.S. dollars, the value of our assets and our income could be adversely affected by fluctuations in the value of local currencies.

Additionally, our competitiveness in international market areas may be adversely affected by regulations, including, but not limited to, regulations requiring:

- ♦ the awarding of contracts to local contractors;
- ♦ the employment of local citizens; and
- ♦ the establishment of foreign subsidiaries with significant ownership positions reserved by the foreign government for local citizens.

We cannot predict what types of the above events may occur.

We might be unable to employ a sufficient number of skilled workers.

The delivery of our products and services require personnel with specialized skills and experience. As a result, our ability to remain productive and profitable will depend upon our ability to employ and retain skilled workers. In addition, our ability to expand our operations depends in part on our ability to increase the size of our skilled labor force. The demand for skilled workers in the Gulf Coast region is high, and the supply is limited. In addition, although our employees are not covered by a collective bargaining agreement, the marine services industry has been targeted by maritime labor unions in an effort to organize Gulf of Mexico employees. A significant increase in the wages paid by competing employers or the unionization of our Gulf of Mexico employees could result in a reduction of our skilled labor force, increases in the wage rates that we must pay or both. If either of these events were to occur, our capacity and profitability could be diminished and our growth potential could be impaired.

10

Under our certificate of incorporation, as amended to date, we have authority to issue 125,000,000 shares of common stock, par value \$.001 per share. As of February 28, 2005, 77,554,214 shares of our common stock were outstanding. As of that date, we also had 5,235,347 shares of common stock reserved for issuance upon exercise of options or in connection with other awards outstanding under various employee or director incentive, compensation and option plans. The outstanding shares of our common stock are, and all shares being offered by this prospectus will be, fully paid and nonassessable. The following description of our common stock, certificate of incorporation, and by-laws are only summaries, and we encourage you to review complete copies of these documents, which are exhibits to the Registration Statement of which this prospectus is a part.

Dividends

Subject to any preferences accorded to the holders of our preferred stock, holders of our common stock are entitled to any dividend declared by our board of directors out of funds legally available for that purpose.

Voting Rights

The holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held of record on all matters as to which stockholders are entitled to vote. Stockholders are not allowed to cumulate votes on any matters submitted to our stockholders, including the election of our board of directors.

Liquidation and Other Rights

In the event of our voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the holders of our common stock will be entitled to share equally in any of our assets available for distribution after the payment in full of all debts and distributions and after the holders of all series of outstanding preferred stock have received their liquidation preferences in full. The holders of our common stock are not entitled to preemptive or redemption rights. Shares of common stock are not redeemable and are not convertible into shares of any other class of capital stock.

Provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws and Delaware Law

Our certificate of incorporation contains provisions that limit the amount of our voting stock (including our common stock) that may be owned by persons who are not U.S. citizens, which may adversely affect the liquidity of our common stock in certain situations. In addition, our certificate of incorporation and by-laws contain provisions that may have an adverse effect on the ability of our stockholders to influence our corporate governance.

Summaries of the provisions described in the preceding paragraph, and certain provisions of Delaware law, are set forth below. However, you should read our certificate of incorporation and by-laws for a more complete description of the rights of holders of our common stock.

Limitations on Ownership of Our Stock by Persons who are not U.S. Citizens.

Federal maritime laws (including the Merchant Marine Act of 1920, the Merchant Marine Act of 1936, and the Shipping Act of 1916) provide that vessels may only transport passengers and merchandise between points in the United States (referred to as "operating in the coastwise trade") if they are owned by U.S. citizens. For such purposes, a corporation is considered a U.S. citizen if at least 75% of its outstanding stock is owned by persons or organizations who are U.S. citizens. Some of our subsidiaries operate in the coastwise trade, and as a result we are subject to these requirements. If we were to fail to comply with these maritime laws, those subsidiaries would not be permitted to continue to operate vessels in the coastwise trade. Therefore, to facilitate compliance, our certificate of incorporation contains provisions which are designed to enable us to regulate the ownership of our capital stock by persons who are not U.S. citizens, including the following:

♦ any transfer of shares of our capital stock that would result in non-U.S. citizens controlling more than 23% (the "permitted amount") of the total voting power of all of our capital stock will be void and not effective, except for the purpose of enabling us to effect the other remedies described below;

- ♦ shares of capital stock owned by non-U.S. citizens in excess of the permitted amount are not entitled to voting rights;
- ♦ dividends with respect to shares owned by non-U.S. citizens in excess of the permitted amount are to be withheld by us until the shares are transferred to U.S. citizens or the number of shares held by non-U.S. citizens again does not exceed the permitted amount;
- we are permitted (but not required) to redeem shares of capital stock in excess of the permitted amount; and
- our board of directors is authorized to adopt measures that it determines are necessary or desirable to assure that it can effectively monitor the citizenship of holders of our capital stock, including requiring proof of citizenship of existing or prospective stockholders or implementing a "dual stock certificate" system whereby U.S. citizens and non-U.S. citizens would receive different stock certificates.

Amendment of By-laws

. Under Delaware law, the power to adopt, amend or repeal by-laws is conferred upon stockholders. However, a corporation may in its certificate of incorporation also confer such power upon the board of directors. Our certificate of incorporation and by-laws grant such powers to our board of directors.

Advance Notice of Stockholder Nominations and Stockholder Business.

Our by-laws permit stockholders to nominate a person for election as a director or bring other matters before a stockholders' meeting only if a written notice of intent to nominate or bring business before a meeting is given a specified time in advance of the meeting.

Delaware Section 203.

We are subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which imposes a three-year moratorium on the ability of Delaware corporations to engage in a wide range of specified transactions with any interested stockholder. An interested stockholder includes, among other things, any person other than the corporation and its majority-owned subsidiaries who owns 15% or more of any class or series of stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors. However, the moratorium will not apply if, among other things, the transaction is approved by:

- the corporation's board of directors prior to the date the interested stockholder became an interested stockholder; or
- the holders of two-thirds of the outstanding shares of each class or series of stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, not including those shares owned by the interested stockholder.

Special Meetings of the Stockholders.

Our by-laws provide that special meetings of stockholders may be called only by either the chairman of our board of directors or by a vote of the majority of our board of directors. Our stockholders do not have the power to call a special meeting.

Limitation of Directors' Liability.

Our certificate of incorporation contains provisions eliminating the personal liability of our directors to us and our stockholders for monetary damages for breaches of their fiduciary duties as directors to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law. Under Delaware law and our certificate of incorporation, a director will not be liable for a breach of his or her duty except for liability for:

- a breach of his or her duty of loyalty to us or our stockholders;
- acts or omissions not in good faith or that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;
- ♦ dividends or stock repurchases or redemptions that are unlawful under Delaware law; and
- any transaction from which he or she receives an improper personal benefit.

These provisions pertain only to breaches of duty by directors as directors and not in any other corporate capacity, such as officers. In addition, these provisions limit liability only for breaches of fiduciary duties under Delaware corporate law and not for violations of other laws such as the federal securities laws.

As a result of these provisions in our certificate of incorporation, our stockholders may be unable to recover monetary damages against directors for actions taken by them that constitute negligence or gross negligence or that are in violation of their fiduciary duties. However, our stockholders may obtain injunctive or other equitable relief for these actions. These provisions also reduce the likelihood of derivative litigation against our directors that might have benefitted us.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company is the transfer agent and registrar for our common stock.

DESCRIPTION OF PREFERRED STOCK

Under our certificate of incorporation, as amended to date, we have authority to issue, in one or more series, 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$.01 per share. The number of authorized shares of preferred stock may be increased or decreased by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of our outstanding stock without the separate vote of holders of preferred stock as a class. As of February 28, 2005, no shares of our preferred stock were outstanding. The shares of preferred stock being offered by this prospectus will be fully paid and nonassessable.

The following description of the terms of our preferred stock sets forth certain general terms and provisions of our preferred stock to which any prospectus supplement may relate and will apply to the preferred stock offered by this prospectus unless we provide otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement. The applicable prospectus supplement for a particular series of preferred stock may specify different or additional terms. The description of the terms of our preferred stock set forth below and in any prospectus supplement does not purport to be complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to our certificate of incorporation and the certificate of designations relating to each series of preferred stock.

Our board of directors is authorized to designate, for each series of preferred stock, the preferences, qualifications, limitations, restrictions and optional or other special rights of such series, including, but not limited to:

- the number of shares in the series;
- ♦ the name of the series;
- the dividend rate or basis for determining such rate if any, on the shares of the series;
- whether dividends will be cumulative and, if so, from which date or dates;
- whether the shares of the series will be redeemable and if so, the dates, prices and other terms and conditions of redemption;
- whether we will be obligated to purchase or redeem shares of the series pursuant to a sinking fund or otherwise, and the prices, periods and other terms and conditions upon which the shares of the series will be redeemed or purchased;
- the rights, if any, of holders of the shares of the series to convert such shares into, or exchange such shares for, shares of any other class of stock;

- whether the shares of the series will have voting rights, in addition to the voting rights provided by law, and, if so, the terms of those voting rights; and
- the rights of the shares of the series in the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

The shares of preferred stock of any one series will be identical except for the dates from which dividends will cumulate, if at all.

The issuance of preferred stock could adversely affect the voting power of holders of our common stock and the likelihood that such holders will receive dividend payments and payments upon liquidation and could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control.

DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES

We may, at our option, elect to offer fractional shares of preferred stock, rather than full shares of preferred stock. If we exercise this option, we will issue to the public receipts for depositary shares, and each of these depositary shares will represent a fraction, as set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement, of a share of a particular series of preferred stock. Subject to the terms of the deposit agreement, each owner of a depositary share will be entitled, in proportion to the applicable fraction of a share of preferred stock underlying that depositary share, to all the rights and preferences of the preferred stock underlying that depositary share. These rights include dividend, voting, redemption and liquidation rights. As of February 28, 2005, we had no depositary shares outstanding.

The shares of preferred stock underlying the depositary shares will be deposited with a bank or trust company selected by us to act as depositary, under a deposit agreement between us and the depositary. The depositary will be the transfer agent, registrar and dividend disbursing agent for the depositary shares.

The depositary shares will be evidenced by depositary receipts issued pursuant to the deposit agreement. Depositary receipts will be distributed to those persons purchasing the fractional shares of preferred stock underlying the depositary shares, in accordance with the terms of the offering.

The following description of the terms of our depositary shares sets forth certain general terms and provisions of our depositary shares to which any prospectus supplement may relate and will apply to the depositary shares offered by this prospectus unless we provide otherwise in the applicable prospectus supplement. The applicable prospectus supplement for a particular offering of depositary shares may specify different or additional terms. The description of the terms of our depositary shares set forth below and in any prospectus supplement does not purport to be complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to our certificate of incorporation and the certificate of designations relating to the series of preferred stock underlying the depositary shares, and the deposit agreement and depositary receipts in connection with the offering of specific depositary shares. The forms of the deposit agreement and depositary receipts will be filed with the SEC in connection with the offering of specific depositary shares.

Dividends and Other Distributions

The depositary will distribute cash dividends or other cash distributions, if any, received in respect of the series of preferred stock underlying the depositary shares to the record holders of depositary receipts in proportion to the number of depositary shares owned by those holders on the relevant record date. The relevant record date for depositary shares will be the same date as the record date for the underlying preferred stock.

If there is a distribution other than in cash, the depositary will distribute property received by it to the record holders of depositary shares that are entitled to receive the distribution, unless the depositary determines that it is not feasible to make the distribution. If this occurs, the depositary may, with our approval, sell the property and distribute the net proceeds from the sale to the applicable holders.

14

Redemption of Depositary Shares

If a series of preferred stock represented by depositary shares is subject to redemption, the depositary shares will be redeemed from the proceeds received by the depositary resulting from the redemption, in whole or in part, of that series of preferred stock held by the depositary. The redemption price per depositary share will be equal to the applicable fraction of the redemption price per share payable with respect to that series of the preferred stock.

Whenever we redeem shares of preferred stock that are held by the depositary, the depositary will redeem, as of the same redemption date, the number of depositary shares representing the shares of preferred stock so redeemed. If fewer than all the depositary shares are to be redeemed, the depositary will select the depositary shares to be redeemed by lot or pro rata, as the depositary may determine.

Liquidation Preference

If a series of preferred stock underlying the depositary shares has a liquidation preference, in the event of our voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of depositary shares will be entitled to receive the fraction of the liquidation preference accorded each share of the applicable series of preferred stock, as set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Voting of Preferred Stock

Upon receipt of notice of any meeting at which the holders of the preferred stock are entitled to vote, the depositary will mail the information contained in the notice to the record holders of the underlying depositary receipts. Each record holder of the depositary receipts on the record date will be entitled to instruct the depositary as to the exercise of the voting rights pertaining to the amount of the preferred stock underlying that holder's depositary shares. The relevant record date for depositary shares will be the same date as the record date for the underlying preferred stock. The depositary will then try, as far as practicable, to vote the number of shares of preferred stock underlying those depositary receipts in accordance with these instructions, and we agree to take all actions deemed necessary by the depositary to enable the depositary to do so. The depositary will not vote the shares of preferred stock to the extent it does not receive specific instructions from the holders of the underlying depositary receipts.

Amendment and Termination of Depositary Agreement

The form of depositary receipt evidencing the depositary shares and any provision of the deposit agreement may at any time be amended by agreement between us and the depositary. However, any amendment which materially and adversely alters the rights of the holders of depositary shares will not be effective unless the holders of at least a majority of the depositary shares then outstanding approve the amendment. We or the depositary may terminate the deposit agreement only if:

- all outstanding depositary shares have been redeemed; or
- ♦ there has been a final distribution of the underlying preferred stock in connection with our liquidation, dissolution or winding up and the preferred stock has been distributed to the holders of depositary receipts.

Charges of Depositary

We will pay all transfer and other taxes and governmental charges arising solely from the existence of the depositary arrangements. We will also pay charges of the depositary in connection with the initial deposit of the preferred stock and any redemption of the preferred stock.

Holders of depositary receipts will pay other transfer and other taxes and governmental charges and those other charges, including a fee for the withdrawal of shares of preferred stock upon surrender of depositary receipts, as are expressly provided in the deposit agreement to be for their accounts. If these charges are not paid, the depositary may:

15

- ♦ refuse to transfer depositary shares;
- withhold dividends and distributions in respect to depositary shares; or
- sell the depositary shares evidenced by the depositary receipt.

Miscellaneous

The depositary will forward to holders of depositary receipts all reports and communications we deliver to the depositary that we are required to furnish to the holders of the preferred stock. In addition, the depositary will make available for inspection by holders of depositary receipts at the principal office of the depositary, and at such other places as it may from time to time deem advisable, any reports or communications we deliver to the depositary as the holder of the preferred stock.

Neither we nor the depositary will be liable if either of us is prevented or delayed by law or any circumstance beyond the control of either us or the depositary in performing our respective obligations under the deposit agreement. Our obligations and those of the depositary will be limited to performance in good faith of our respective duties under the deposit agreement. Neither we nor the depositary will be obligated to prosecute or defend any legal proceeding in respect of any depositary shares or preferred stock unless satisfactory indemnity is furnished. We and the depositary may rely upon written advice of counsel or accountants, or upon information provided by persons presenting preferred stock for deposit, holders of depositary receipts or other persons believed to be competent and on documents believed to be genuine.

Resignation and Removal of Depositary

The depositary may resign at any time by delivering notice to us. We may remove the depositary at any time. Any resignation or removal will take effect upon the appointment of a successor depositary and its acceptance of the appointment. The successor depositary must be appointed by us within 60 days after delivery of the notice of resignation or removal.

16

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell the securities from time to time pursuant to underwritten public offerings, negotiated transactions, block trades or a combination of these methods. We may sell the securities through underwriters or dealers, through agents, and/or directly to one or more purchasers. We may distribute the securities from time to time in one or more transactions at:

- a fixed price or prices, which may be changed;
- market prices prevailing at the time of sale;
- prices related to the prevailing market prices;
- varying prices determined at the time of sale; or
- negotiated prices.

We may solicit directly offers to purchase the securities being offered by this prospectus. We may also designate agents to solicit offers to purchase the securities from time to time. We will name in a prospectus supplement any agent involved in the offer or sale of our securities.

If we utilize a dealer in the sale of the securities being offered by this prospectus, we will sell the securities to the dealer, as principal. The dealer may then resell the securities to the public at varying prices to be determined by the dealer at the time of resale.

If we utilize an underwriter in the sale of the securities being offered by this prospectus, we will execute an underwriting agreement with the underwriter at the time of sale and we will provide the name of any underwriter in the prospectus supplement which the underwriter will use to make resales of the securities to the public. In connection with the sale of the securities, we, or the purchasers of securities for whom the underwriter may act as agent, may compensate the underwriter in the form of underwriting discounts or commissions. The underwriter may sell the securities to or through dealers, and the underwriter may compensate those dealers in the form of discounts, concessions or commissions.

With respect to underwritten public offers, negotiated transactions and block trades, we will provide in the applicable prospectus supplement any compensation we pay to underwriters, dealers or agents in connection with the offering of the securities, and any discounts, concessions or commissions allowed by underwriters to participating dealers. Underwriters, dealers and agents participating in the distribution of the securities may be deemed to be underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and any discounts and commissions received by them and any profit realized by them on resale of the securities may be deemed to be underwriting discounts and commissions. We may enter into agreements to indemnify underwriters, dealers and agents against civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribute to payments they may be required to make in respect thereof.

To facilitate the offering of securities, certain persons participating in the offering may engage in transactions that stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the price of the securities. This may include over-allotments or short sales of the securities, which involve the sale by persons participating in the offering of more securities than we sold to them. In these circumstances, these persons would cover such over-allotments or short positions by making purchases in the open market or by exercising their over-allotment option. In addition, these persons may stabilize or maintain the price of the securities by bidding for or purchasing securities in the open market or by imposing penalty bids, whereby selling concessions allowed to dealers participating in the offering may be reclaimed if securities sold by them are repurchased in connection with stabilization transactions. The effect of these transactions may be to stabilize or maintain the market price of the securities at a level above that which might otherwise prevail in the open market. These transactions may be discontinued at any time.

The underwriters, dealers and agents may engage in other transactions with us, or perform other services for us, in the ordinary course of their business.

17

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the securities offered by this prospectus will be passed upon for us by Jones, Walker, Waechter, Poitevent, Carrère & Denègre, L.L.P., New Orleans, Louisiana.

EXPERTS

Our consolidated financial statements and schedule of our subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, and management's assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 have been incorporated by reference herein and in the registration statement in reliance upon the reports of KPMG LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, incorporated by reference herein, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

Certain information incorporated by reference in this prospectus regarding estimated quantities of oil and natural gas reserves owned by us, the future net revenues from those reserves and their present value is based on estimates of the reserves and present values prepared by or derived from estimates prepared by DeGolyer and MacNaughton, independent petroleum engineers. This information has been incorporated by reference in this prospectus in reliance upon the authority of DeGolyer and MacNaughton as experts in reserve determination. Future estimates of oil and natural gas reserves and related information hereafter incorporated by reference in this prospectus and the registration statement will be incorporated in reliance upon the reports of the firm examining such oil and gas reserves and related information and upon the authority of that firm as experts regarding the matters contained in their reports, to the extent the firm has consented to the use of their reports.

NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the statements in this prospectus and in some of the documents that we incorporate by reference in this prospectus are forward-looking statements about our expectations of what may happen in the future. Statements that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements. These statements are based on the beliefs and assumptions of our management and on information currently available to us. Forward-looking statements can sometimes be identified by our use of forward-looking words like "anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "expect," "intend," "may," "plan," and similar expressions.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance. They involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our future results and stockholder value may differ significantly from those expressed in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in this prospectus and in the information incorporated in this prospectus. Many of the factors that will determine these results and values are beyond our ability to control or predict. We caution you that a number of important factors could cause actual results to be very different from and worse than our expectations expressed in or implied by any forward-looking statement. These factors include, but are not limited to, those discussed in "Risk Factors" on page 3 of this supplement.

Our management believes these forward-looking statements are reasonable. However, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which are based only on our current expectations. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and we undertake no obligation to publicly update any of them in light of new information or future events.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any document we file at the SEC's public reference room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C., 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. Our SEC filings are also available to the public at the SEC's web site at http://www.sec.gov. You can also obtain information about us at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange, 20 Broad Street, New York, New York, 10005.

We maintain an Internet site at http://www.superiorenergy.com that contains information about our business. The information contained at our Internet site is not part of this prospectus.

We have filed a registration statement and related exhibits with the SEC to register the securities offered by this prospectus. The registration statement contains additional information about us and our securities. You may inspect the registration statement and exhibits without charge at the SEC's public reference rooms, and you may obtain copies from the SEC at prescribed rates.

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" the information we file with it, which means:

- incorporated documents are considered part of the prospectus;
- we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents; and
- information that we file with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this incorporated information.

We incorporate by reference the following documents that we have filed with the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934:

- our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 (filed March 15, 2005);
- ♦ our current reports on Form 8-K filed January 11, 2005, February 25, 2005;
- ♦ the description of our common stock set forth in our registration statement on Form 8-A/A filed October 29, 1997; and
- ♦ all documents filed by us with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act after the date of this prospectus and prior to the termination of this offering.

At your request, we will provide you with a free copy of any of these filings (except for exhibits, unless the exhibits are specifically incorporated by reference into the filing). You may request copies by writing or telephoning us at:

Superior Energy Services, Inc.

1105 Peters Road

Harvey, Louisiana 70058

Attn: Investor Relations

(504) 362-4321

PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.

The following table sets forth the various expenses payable by us in connection with the issuance and distribution of the securities being registered hereunder. All of the fees and expenses shown are estimated except for the SEC registration fee.

SEC registration fee	\$ 34,403
Legal fees and expenses	150,000
Accounting fees and expenses	75,000
Printing	50,000
Blue Sky fees and expenses	5,000
Transfer Agent fees and expenses	10,000
Miscellaneous fees and expenses	_ <u>55,597</u>
Total	<u>\$ 380,000</u>

Item 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

Our certificate of incorporation contains provisions eliminating the personal liability of our directors and stockholders for monetary damages for breaches of their fiduciary duties as directors to the fullest extent permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law (the "DGCL"). By virtue of these provisions, under current Delaware law a director of the Company will not be personally liable for monetary damages for a breach of his or her fiduciary duty except for liability for (a) a breach of his or her duty of loyalty to the Company or to its stockholders, (b) acts or omissions not in good faith or that involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (c) dividends or stock repurchases or redemptions that are unlawful under Delaware law and (d) any transaction from which he or she receives an improper personal benefit. In addition, our certificate of incorporation provides that if Delaware law is amended to authorize the further elimination or limitation of the liability of a director, then the liability of the directors shall be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law, as amended. These provisions pertain only to breaches of duty by directors as directors and not in any other corporate capacity, such as officers, and limit liability only for breaches of fiduciary duties under Delaware corporate law and not for violations of other laws such as the federal securities laws.

Our certificate of incorporation also requires us to indemnify our directors, officers, employees and agents to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL against certain expenses and costs, judgments, settlements and fines incurred in the defense of any claim, including any claim brought by or in the right of the Company, to which they were made parties by reason of being or having been directors, officers, employees and agents.

Under Section 9 of our by-laws, we are required to defend and indemnify each person who is involved in any threatened or actual claim, action or proceeding by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director or officer or serving in a similar position with respect to another entity at our request if (a) the director or officer is successful in defending the claim on its merits or otherwise or (b) the director or officer meets the standard of conduct described in Section 9 of our by-laws. However, the director or officer is not entitled to indemnification if (i) the claim is brought by the director or officer against us or (ii) the claim is brought by the director or officer as a derivative action by us or in our right, and the action has not been authorized by our board of directors. The rights conferred by Section 9 of our by-laws are contractual rights and include the right to be paid expenses incurred in defending the action, suit or proceeding in advance of its final disposition.

In addition, we have entered into an indemnity agreement with each of our directors and certain key executive officers, pursuant to which we have agreed under certain circumstances to purchase and maintain directors' and officers' liability insurance. The agreements also provide that we will indemnify the directors or officers, as applicable, against any costs and expenses, judgments, settlements and fines

II-1

incurred in connection with any claim involving them by reason of their position as a director or officer, as applicable, that are in excess of the coverage provided by such insurance (provided that the director or officer meets certain standards of conduct). Under the indemnity agreements, we are not required to purchase and maintain directors' and officers' liability insurance if our board of directors unanimously determines in good faith that there is insufficient benefit to us from the insurance.

Item 16. Exhibits.

1.1	- Fo	orm of Underwriting Agreement for Securities.**
3.1	re	ertificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated herein by ference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Form 10-QSB for the quarter ded March 31, 1996).
3.2	(ir	ertificate of Amendment of the Company's Certificate of Incorporation accorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Form and Formula (Popular).
3.3		mended and Restated By-laws (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1 to the Company's Form 8-K filed on November 15, 2004).
4.1	Āī	becimen of Common Stock certificate (incorporated herein by reference to mendment No. 1 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form SB-2 egistration No. 333-94454)).
4.2	- Fo	orm Depositary Receipt.**
5.1	- Op	pinion of Jones, Walker, Waechter, Poitevent, Carrère & Denègre, L.L.P.
12.1		omputation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preference vidends.
23.1	- Cc	onsent of KPMG LLP.
23.2		onsent of Jones, Walker, Waechter, Poitevent, Carrère & Denègre, L.L.P. acluded in Exhibit 5.1).
23.3	- Co	onsent of DeGolyer and MacNaughton.
24.1	- Po	owers of Attorney for the Company (included on signature pages).

^{**} To be filed by amendment or subsequently incorporated into this registration statement.

Item 17. Undertakings.

- (a) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:
- (1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement:
- (i) To include any prospectus required by section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;

II-2

- (ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of this registration statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment hereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in this registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20% change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration statement; and
- (iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in this registration statement or any material change to such information in this registration statement;

provided, however, that paragraphs (a)(1)(i) and (a)(1)(ii) do not apply if the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in periodic reports filed with or furnished to the SEC by the registrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in this registration statement.

- (2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
- (3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.
- (b) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of the registrant's annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and, where applicable, each filing of an employee benefit plan's annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporated by reference in this registration statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered herein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
- (c) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the

matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act of 1933 and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

II-3

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Harvey, State of Louisiana, on March 18, 2005.

SUPERIOR ENERGY SERVICES, INC.

By:

/s/ Terence E. Hall

Terence E. Hall Chief Executive Officer

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints each of Terence E. Hall and Robert S. Taylor, or either of them, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement, and to file the same with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorney-in-fact and agent full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact and agent or his substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

<u>Signature</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Date</u>
/s/ Terence E. Hall	_	
Terence E. Hall	_	

Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

March 18, 2005

/s/	Robert	S.	Taylor

Robert S. Taylor

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

March 18, 2005

/s/ Enoch L. Dawkins

Enoch L. Dawkins

FONT> March 31, December 31, In millions 2012 2011

Inventories

Finished goods

\$33 \$41

Service parts

21 20

Total inventories

\$54 \$61

7

4. Goodwill and Acquired Intangible Assets

The following table identifies the activity relating to goodwill by operating segment:

In millions	Dece	Balance December 31, 2011 Additions			Currency Translation Adjustments		Translation Mai	
Goodwill								
Americas	\$	543	\$	0	\$	2	\$	545
EMEA		120		0		1		121
APJ		79		0		(2)		77
Total goodwill	\$	742	\$	0	\$	1	\$	743

The only changes in goodwill for the three months ended March 31, 2012 were due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Acquired intangible assets were specifically identified when acquired, and are deemed to have finite lives. The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for Teradata s acquired intangible assets were as follows:

		Marc	h 31, 2012	December 31, 2011		
In millions	Original Amortization Life (in Years)	Gross Carrying Amount	Accumulated Amortization	Gross Carrying Amount	Accumulated Amortization	
Acquired intangible assets						
Intellectual property/developed technology	5 to 7	122	(28)	122	(23)	
Customer relationships	4 to 10	55	(8)	55	(6)	
Trademarks/trade names	5 to 10	11	(1)	11	(1)	
In-process research and development	5	5	0	5	0	
Non-compete agreements	2	1	(1)	1	(1)	
Total	2 to 10	194	(38)	194	(31)	

The aggregate amortization expense (actual and estimated) for acquired intangible assets for the following periods is as follows:

	Three M	onths		For the ye			
	Ended						
	March 31,						
In millions	2012 2012		2013	2014	2015	2016	
Amortization expense	\$	7	\$ 29	\$ 29	\$ 29	\$ 27	\$ 19

5. Income Taxes

Income tax provisions for interim periods are based on estimated annual income tax rates, adjusted to reflect the effects of any significant infrequent or unusual items which are required to be discretely recognized within the current interim period. The Company s intention is to permanently reinvest its foreign earnings outside of the United States. As a result, the effective tax rates in the periods presented are largely based upon the forecasted pre-tax earnings mix and allocation of certain expenses in various taxing jurisdictions where the Company conducts its business that apply a broad range of statutory income tax rates, certain of which are less than the U.S. statutory rate.

The effective tax rate was 28% for both the three months ended March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2011. There were no material discrete tax items reflected in the effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2011.

6. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

As a portion of the Company s operations and revenue occur outside the United States and in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, the Company is exposed to potential gains and losses from changes in foreign currency exchange rates. In an attempt to mitigate the impact of currency fluctuations, the Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge transactional exposures resulting predominantly from foreign currency denominated inter-company receivables and payables. The forward contracts are designated as fair value hedges of specified foreign currency denominated inter-company receivables and payables and generally mature in three months or less. The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes, nor does it hold or issue leveraged derivative instruments. By using derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates, the Company exposes itself to credit risk. The Company manages exposure to counterparty credit risk by entering into derivative financial instruments with highly rated institutions that can be expected to fully perform under the terms of the applicable contracts.

All derivatives are recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at their fair value. The fair values of foreign exchange contracts are based on market spot and forward exchange rates and represent estimates of possible value that may not be realized in the future. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments, along with the loss or gain on the hedged asset or liability, are recorded in current period earnings. The notional amounts represent agreed-upon amounts on which calculations of dollars to be exchanged are based, and are an indication of the extent of Teradata s involvement in such instruments. These notional amounts do not represent amounts exchanged by the parties and, therefore, are not a measure of the instruments. Across its portfolio of contracts, Teradata has both long and short positions relative to the U.S. dollar. As a result, Teradata s net involvement is less than the total contract notional amount of the Company s foreign exchange forward contracts.

The contract notional amount of the Company s foreign exchange forward contracts was \$88 million (\$36 million on a net basis) at March 31, 2012, and \$102 million (\$19 million on a net basis) at December 31, 2011. The fair value derivative assets and liabilities recorded in other current assets and accrued liabilities at March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, were not material.

Gains and losses from the Company s fair value hedges (foreign currency forward contracts and related hedged items) were immaterial for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2011. Gains and losses from foreign exchange forward contracts are fully recognized each period and reported along with the offsetting gain or loss of the related hedged item, either in cost of products or in other income, depending on the nature of the related hedged item.

7. Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to proceedings, lawsuits, claims and other matters, including those that relate to the environment, health and safety, employee benefits, export compliance, intellectual property, tax matters, and other regulatory compliance and general matters, including those described below.

The Company is subject to governmental investigations and requests for information from time to time. As previously reported prior to Teradata's separation from NCR Corporation (NCR), the United States Department of Justice is conducting an investigation regarding the propriety of the Company's arrangements or understandings with others in connection with certain federal contracts and the adequacy of certain disclosures related to such contracts. The investigation arises in connection with civil litigation in federal district court filed under the qui tam provisions of the civil False Claims Act against a number of information technology companies, including the Company. The complaints against the Company remain under seal. The Company has conducted its analysis of such claims focusing on the propriety of certain transactions under federal programs under which Teradata was a contractor. The Company has shared evidence with the Justice Department of questionable conduct that the Company uncovered, has cooperated with the Justice Department in its investigation, and is in settlement discussions with the government to resolve this matter.

9

A separate portion of the government s investigation relates to the adequacy of pricing disclosures made to the government in connection with negotiation of NCR s General Services Administration Federal Supply Schedule as it relates to Teradata, prior to the Company s separation from NCR, and to whether certain subsequent price reductions were properly passed on to the government. Both NCR and the Company have participated in this aspect of the investigation, with respect to certain products and services of each, and each will assume financial responsibility for its own exposures, if any, without indemnification from the other.

The Company has an accrual of approximately \$3 million related to the current best estimate of probable liability relating to these matters. The Company believes the amounts provided in its financial statements are adequate in light of the probable and estimable liabilities. The Company believes that there is not a reasonable possibility that the loss in respect of these contingent matters will materially exceed the liability reflected in the Company s financial statements, although there can be no assurance that this will in fact be the case.

Guarantees and Product Warranties. Guarantees associated with the Company s business activities are reviewed for appropriateness and impact to the Company s financial statements. Periodically, the Company s customers enter into various leasing arrangements coordinated with a leasing company. In some instances, the Company guarantees the leasing company a minimum value at the end of the lease term on the leased equipment. As of March 31, 2012, the maximum future payment obligation of this guaranteed value and the associated liability balance was \$3 million.

The Company provides its customers a standard manufacturer s warranty and records, at the time of the sale, a corresponding estimated liability for potential warranty costs. Estimated future obligations due to warranty claims are based upon historical factors such as labor rates, average repair time, travel time, number of service calls and cost of replacement parts. For each consummated sale, the Company recognizes the total customer revenue and records the associated warranty liability using pre-established warranty percentages for that product class.

The following table identifies the activity relating to the warranty reserve for the three months ended March 31:

In millions	2012	2011
Warranty reserve liability		
Beginning balance at January 1	\$ 6	\$ 6
Provisions for warranties issued	4	3
Settlements (in cash or in kind)	(3)	(4)
Balance at March 31	\$ 7	\$ 5

The Company also offers extended and/or enhanced coverage to its customers in the form of maintenance contracts. The Company accounts for these contracts by deferring the related maintenance revenue over the extended and/or enhanced coverage period. Costs associated with maintenance support are expensed as incurred. Amounts associated with these maintenance contracts are not included in the table above.

In addition, the Company provides its customers with certain indemnification rights. In general, the Company agrees to indemnify the customer if a third party asserts patent or other infringement on the part of the customer for its use of the Company s products. The Company has entered into indemnification agreements with the officers and directors of its subsidiaries. From time to time, the Company also enters into agreements in connection with its acquisition and divesture activities that include indemnification obligations by the Company. The fair value of these indemnification obligations is not readily determinable due to the conditional nature of the Company s potential obligations and the specific facts and circumstances involved with each particular agreement, and as such the Company has not recorded a liability in connection with these indemnification arrangements. Historically, payments made by the Company under these types of agreements have not had a material effect on the Company s consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

8. Fair Value Measurements

GAAP has established a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. These tiers include: Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; Level 2, defined as significant other observable inputs, such as quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, or quoted prices in less-active markets for identical assets; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions. Financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The Company s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis include money market funds and foreign currency exchange contracts. A portion of the Company s excess cash reserves are held in money market funds which generate interest income based on the prevailing market rates. Money market funds are included in cash and cash equivalents in the Company s balance sheet. Money market fund holdings are measured at fair value using quoted market prices and are classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. When deemed appropriate, the Company minimizes its exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates through the use of derivative financial instruments, specifically, forward foreign exchange contracts. The fair value of these contracts are measured at the end of each interim reporting period using observable inputs other than quoted prices, specifically market spot and forward exchange rates. As such, these derivative instruments are classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. Fair value gains for open contracts are recognized as assets and fair value losses are recognized as liabilities. The fair value derivative assets and liabilities recorded in other current assets and accrued liabilities at March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, were not material. Any realized gains or losses would be mitigated by corresponding gains or losses on the underlying exposures.

The Company s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and subject to fair value disclosure requirements at March 31, 2012 were as follows:

		Fair Value Me Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level	easurements at Repor Significant Other Observable Inputs	rting Date Using Signficant Unobservable Inputs
In millions	March 31, 2012	1)	(Level 2)	(Level 3)
Assets				
Money market funds	\$ 597	\$ 597	\$ 0	\$ 0

The Company s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and subject to fair value disclosure requirements at December 31, 2011 were as follows:

		Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using			
		Quoted Prices in			
		Active			
		Markets			
		for Identical	Significant Other	Signficant	
		Assets	Observable	Unobservable	
		(Level	Inputs	Inputs	
In millions	December 31, 2011	1)	(Level 2)	(Level 3)	
Assets					
Money market funds	\$ 471	\$ 471	\$ 0	\$ 0	
L4					

9. Debt

I

Teradata s five-year revolving credit agreement (the Credit Facility), under which the Company may borrow up to \$300 million ends on September 30, 2012, at which point any remaining outstanding borrowings would be due for repayment. The interest rate charged on borrowings pursuant to the Credit Facility can vary depending on the

interest rate option the Company chooses to utilize and the Company s leverage ratio at the time of the borrowing. In the near term, Teradata would anticipate choosing a floating rate based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The Credit Facility is unsecured and contains certain representations and warranties, conditions, affirmative, negative and financial covenants, and events of default customary for such facilities. The Company is currently negotiating for a new credit facility and expects to have it in place by September 2012.

As of March 31, 2012, the Company had no borrowings outstanding under the Credit Facility, leaving \$300 million in additional borrowing capacity available under the Credit Facility.

Teradata s senior unsecured \$300 million five-year term loan is payable in quarterly installments, commencing on June 30, 2012, with all remaining principal due in April 2016. The outstanding principal amount of the term loan agreement bears interest at a floating rate based upon a negotiated base rate or a Eurodollar rate plus in each case a margin based on the leverage ratio of the Company. As of March 31, 2012, the term loan principal outstanding was \$300 million, and carried an interest rate of 1.25%.

10. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the reported period. The calculation of diluted earnings per share is similar to basic earnings per share, except that the weighted average number of shares outstanding includes the dilution from potential shares resulting from stock options and unvested restricted stock awards.

The components of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows:

		Three Months Ended March 31,			
In millions, except per share amounts	2012	2011			
Net income available for common stockholders	\$ 91	\$ 65			
Weighted average outstanding shares of common stock	167.9	168.4			
Dilutive effect of employee stock options and restricted stock	3.7	3.4			
Common stock and common stock equivalents	171.6	171.8			
Earnings per share:					
Basic	\$ 0.54	\$ 0.39			
Diluted	\$ 0.53	\$ 0.38			

No stock options were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share for the three months ended March 31, 2012, or the three months ended March 31, 2011.

11. Segment and Other Supplemental Information

Teradata manages its business in three geographic regions, which are also the Company s operating segments: (1) the North America and Latin America (Americas) region; (2) the Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA) region; and (3) the Asia Pacific and Japan (APJ) region. Management evaluates the performance of its segments based on revenue and segment margin, and does not include segment assets for management reporting purposes. Corporate-related costs are fully allocated to the segments.

12

The following table presents regional segment revenue and gross margin for the Company:

	Three Months Ended March 31,	
In millions	2012	2011
Revenue		
Americas	\$ 388	\$ 307
EMEA	136	125
APJ	89	74
Total revenue	613	506
Gross margin		
Americas	232	175
EMEA	66	70
APJ	40	30
1113	40	30
Total gross margin	338	275
Selling, general and administrative expenses	165	150
Research and development expenses	46	34
Total income from operations	\$ 127	\$ 91

The following table presents revenue by product and services for the Company:

		Three Months Ended March 31,		
In millions	2012	2011		
Products (software and hardware) ⁽¹⁾	\$ 308	\$ 235		
Consulting services	165	145		
Maintenance services	140	126		
Total services	305	271		
Total revenue	\$ 613	\$ 506		

12. Business Combinations

Fiscal 2011 Acquisitions

In January 2011, Teradata completed its acquisition of 100 percent of the stock of Aprimo, Inc. (Aprimo). Aprimo is a global provider of cloud-based integrated marketing management (IMM) software solutions. Aprimo has been integrated into Teradata s operations, and the Aprimo

⁽¹⁾ Our data warehousing software and hardware products are often sold and delivered together in the form of a node of capacity as an integrated technology solution. Accordingly, it is impracticable to provide the breakdown of revenue from various types of software and hardware products.

organization now supports Teradata s applications strategy, including development, marketing, sales and services. Aprimo s operations have been integrated into, and its actual results are reflected in, the Company s three geographic operating regions. The aggregate consideration payable with respect to all of the outstanding stock and equity interests (including all outstanding warrants, stock options and restricted stock units) of Aprimo in the acquisition was \$525 million in cash, subject to potential adjustments for certain of Aprimo s indemnification obligations under the merger agreement.

In April 2011, Teradata completed its acquisition of all remaining equity of Aster Data Systems, Inc. (Aster Data). Aster Data is a market leader in advanced analytics and the management of diverse, multi-structured data. The combination of Teradata and Aster Data technologies enables businesses to perform better analytics on large sets of multi-structured data, also known as big data. The aggregate consideration with respect to all of the outstanding stock and equity interests of Aster Data was \$259 million. The aggregate consideration excluded the value of Teradata s pre-existing 11.2% equity investment in Aster Data. At the date of acquisition, the fair value of Teradata s previous 11.2% equity interest in Aster Data was \$36 million. Teradata recorded a gain of \$11 million related to this existing equity interest in Aster Data, and that gain was recorded in other income and (expense) in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income, during the second quarter of 2011.

13

Table of Contents

Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A)

You should read the following discussion in conjunction with the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes to those statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains certain statements that are forward-looking within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Certain statements contained in the MD&A are forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The forward-looking statements are not historical facts, but rather are based on current expectations, estimates, assumptions and projections about our industry, business and future financial results. Our actual results could differ materially from the results contemplated by these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including those discussed in other sections of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and in the 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

First Quarter Financial Overview

As more fully discussed in later sections of this MD&A, the following were significant financial items for the first quarter of 2012:

Total revenue was \$613 million for the first quarter of 2012, up 21% from the first quarter of 2011, led by growth in the North America and Latin America (Americas) and the Asia Pacific and Japan (APJ) regions.

Gross margin increased to 55.1% in the first quarter of 2012 from 54.3% in the first quarter of 2011, driven primarily by the impact of a greater percentage of product revenue, as compared to services revenue. Gross margins for the first quarter of 2012 also included approximately \$4 million less in acquisition-related costs, as compared to the first quarter of 2011.

Operating income was \$127 million in the first quarter of 2012, compared to \$91 million in the first quarter of 2011, driven by revenue growth, and offset in part by higher Selling, General and Administrative (SG&A) and Research and Development (R&D) expenses, which reflected the impact of our strategic initiative to add sales headcount, including the impact of added headcount and infrastructure brought on by the acquisitions of Aprimo, Inc. (Aprimo) and Aster Data Systems, Inc. (<math>Aster Data), as well as increased sales compensation expenses, driven by higher revenue volumes.

Net income of \$91 million in the first quarter of 2012 increased 40% from \$65 million in the first quarter of 2011, with increased revenue offset in part by higher operating expenses, as compared to the prior year. Net income for the first quarter of 2012 also included approximately \$6 million less in after-tax, acquisition-related purchase accounting adjustments, transaction, integration and reorganization expenses.

Strategic Overview

Teradata is a leader in helping companies manage, integrate, and analyze growing data volumes and complexity, and transform it into actionable business insight for competitive advantage. Teradata s strategy focuses on three large and growing markets data warehousing, big data analytics, and integrated marketing management applications. Additionally, we have four key initiatives underway to broaden our position in the market and take advantage of these market opportunities. These initiatives are to:

Invest to extend Teradata s core database technology and software application offerings, and expand our family of compatible data warehouse platforms to address multiple market segments and solution offerings through internal development and targeted strategic acquisitions,

14

Table of Contents

Differentiate Teradata technology and drive platform and solutions demand by delivering consulting services that enable customers to achieve business value through the use of best-in-class analytics,

Invest in partnerships to increase the number of solutions available on Teradata platforms, maximize customer value and increase our market coverage, and

Continue to seek opportunities to increase our market coverage through additional sales territories (hiring incremental sales account executives as well as technology and industry consultants).

Future Trends

We believe that demand for our solutions will continue to increase due to the continued increase in data volumes and types of data, the scale and complexity of business requirements, and the growing use of new data elements and more near real-time analytics over time. The adoption by customers of more near real-time analysis for enterprise intelligence is driving more applications, usage and capacity. We believe there is additional opportunity for Teradata in Integrated Marketing Management (IMM) and Digital Marketing. Marketing organizations have been a leader in leveraging analytics over the years. A significant number of our data warehouses are being used by marketing organizations, and many of them are using our Teradata/Aprimo multi-channel campaign management application.

Furthermore, we believe that Marketing will lead the way in most corporations to drive innovation from new analytics with Big Data. Marketing can use and apply the new insights created from social and mobile data, to impact a corporation s revenue and earnings, and leverage the new channels created with social and mobile media to interact with and market to customers.

As a portion of the Company s operations and revenue occur outside the United States, and in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, the Company is exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. In 2012, Teradata would expect approximately one percentage point of adverse impact from currency translation on its reported revenue and a corresponding currency impact on operating income, based on currency rates as of April 26, 2012.

There have been continued signs of economic recovery in 2011 and the first quarter of 2012, particularly with respect to information technology spending; however, risks associated with macroeconomic challenges and fluctuations still exist. Even in a strong economic environment, the size, timing and contracted terms of large customer orders for our products and services can impact, both positively and negatively, our operating results.

While macroeconomic risk factors in the IT environment always exist, our long-term outlook remains positive. We did not experience significant changes in the first quarter of 2012 due to competitive and/or pricing trends for our data warehouse or appliance solutions, although there is always a risk that pricing pressure for our solutions could occur in the future. Additionally, as companies look to reduce ongoing operating expenses, customers may choose to go to lower maintenance service level agreements which could lead to revenue and margin pressure on our maintenance services business. We continue to be committed to new product development and achieving a responsive yield from our research and development spending and resources, which are intended to drive future demand. We also continue to evaluate opportunities to increase our market coverage and are committed to continuing to increase our number of sales territories, among other things, to drive future revenue growth. New sales account territories typically take more than two years to become fully productive, given the length of an average sales cycle with a new data warehouse prospect.

15

Results of Operations for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2012

Compared to the Three Months Ended March 31, 2011

In millions	2012	% of Revenue	2011	% of Revenue
Product revenue	\$ 308	50.2%	\$ 235	46.4%
Service revenue	305	49.8%	271	53.6%
Total revenue	613	100%	506	100%
Gross margin				
Product gross margin	205	66.6%	156	66.4%
Service gross margin	133	43.6%	119	43.9%
Total gross margin	338	55.1%	275	54.3%
Operating expenses				
Selling, general and administrative expenses	165	26.9%	150	29.6%
Research and development expenses	46	7.5%	34	6.7%
Total operating expenses	211	34.4%	184	36.4%
Operating income	\$ 127	20.7%	\$ 91	18.0%

Revenue

Teradata revenue increased 21% in the first quarter of 2012 compared to the first quarter of 2011. The revenue increase included 1% of adverse impact from foreign currency fluctuations. Product revenue increased 31% in the first quarter of 2012 from the prior-year period, led by growth in the Americas and APJ regions. Service revenue in the first quarter of 2012 increased 13% from the prior-year period, with an underlying 14% increase in consulting services revenue, and 11% increase in maintenance services revenue, as compared to the prior-year period.

Gross Margin

Gross margin for the first quarter of 2012 was 55.1% compared to 54.3% in the first quarter of 2011. Product gross margin increased to 66.6% in the first quarter of 2012, compared to 66.4% in the prior-year period. Product gross margin in the first quarter of 2012 included \$4 million of costs from acquired intangible assets, as compared to \$7 million of combined purchase accounting adjustments and amortization of acquired intangible assets in the first quarter of 2011. The decrease in acquisition-related costs was offset by \$3 million of additional amortization of capitalized internal software development costs in the first quarter of 2012. Service gross margin decreased to 43.6% in the first quarter of 2012 compared to 43.9% in the prior-year period. The slight decrease in services margins was influenced by the somewhat higher mix of consulting margins, which are somewhat lower than maintenance gross margins.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses, characterized as SG&A and R&D expenses, were \$211 million in the first quarter of 2012 compared to \$184 million in the first quarter of 2011. The \$15 million increase in SG&A expenses was largely driven by higher selling expense, due primarily to our strategic initiative to add sales headcount (including sales headcount from acquisitions closed in 2011), as well as increased revenue-driven costs for sales commissions. These increases were offset in part by \$4 million less in acquisition-related transaction, integration and amortization expenses. The \$12 million increase in R&D expenses was driven by higher engineering headcount expenses, including incremental engineering headcount from the Aprimo and Aster Data acquisitions completed in 2011, as well as \$2 million less in capitalization of software development expenses.

Certain R&D expenses for internally developed software are capitalized and later amortized over the useful life of the underlying commercial software products. The capitalization entry reduces R&D expense, and the subsequent amortization of those costs is charged against product cost of revenue, which reduces product gross margin.

16

Revenue and Gross Margin by Operating Segment

As described in Note 11 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited), Teradata manages its business in three geographic regions, which are also the Company s operating segments: (1) the Americas region; (2) the Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA) region; and (3) the APJ region. Teradata believes this format is useful to investors because it allows analysis and comparability of operating trends by operating segment. It also includes the same information that is used by Teradata management to make decisions regarding the segments and to assess our financial performance. The discussion of our segment results describes the changes in results as compared to the prior-year period.

The following table presents revenue and operating performance by segment for the three months ended March 31:

		% of		% of
In millions	2012	Revenue	2011	Revenue
Revenue				
Americas	\$ 388	63%	\$ 307	61%
EMEA	136	22%	125	25%
APJ	89	15%	74	14%
Total revenue	613	100%	506	100%
Gross margin				
Americas	232	59.8%	175	57.0%
EMEA	66	48.5%	70	56.0%
APJ	40	44.9%	30	40.5%
Total gross margin	\$ 338	55.1%	\$ 275	54.3%

Americas: Revenue increased 26% in the first quarter of 2012 from the first quarter of 2011, led by a 41% increase in product revenue. The revenue increase included 1% of adverse impact from foreign currency fluctuations. Gross margins increased to 59.8% for the first quarter of 2012, from 57.0% in the first quarter of 2011, driven primarily by improved product deal mix, as well as the impact of a higher proportion of product revenue, as compared to services revenue, compared to the prior-year period. The term deal mix refers to the revenue mix of our product sales consummated in a particular period, including both software versus hardware content and mix, and amount and mix of third-party products re-sold.

EMEA: Revenue increased 9% in the first quarter of 2012 from the first quarter of 2011, led by a 20% increase in consulting revenue. The revenue increase included 4% of adverse impact from foreign currency fluctuations. Gross margins decreased to 48.5% for the first quarter of 2012, from 56.0% in the first quarter of 2011, driven primarily by a greater proportion of consulting services revenue (compared to product revenue), as well as adverse deal mix and the timing of transactions.

APJ: Revenue increased 20% in the first quarter of 2012 from the first quarter of 2011, led by a 37% increase in product revenue. The revenue increase included 2% of benefit from foreign currency fluctuations. Gross margin increased to 44.9% in the first quarter of 2012, from 40.5% in the first quarter of 2011. The gross margin increase was driven primarily by improved consulting services margins, as well as the strong growth in product revenue, compared to the prior-year period.

Provision for Income Taxes

Income tax provisions for interim periods are based on estimated annual income tax rates, adjusted to reflect the effects of any significant infrequent or unusual items which are required to be discretely recognized within the current interim period. The Company s intention is to permanently reinvest its foreign earnings outside of the United States. As a result, the effective tax rates in the periods presented are largely based upon the forecasted pre-tax earnings mix between the United States and other foreign taxing jurisdictions where the Company conducts its business. The Company estimates its full-year forecasted global effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2012 to be approximately 27%. This estimate is based on the forecasted overseas profits being taxed at an overall effective tax rate of approximately 12%, as compared to the statutory tax rate of 35% in the United States.

The effective tax rate in the first quarter of 2012 was 28%, the same as in the first quarter of 2011. There were no material discrete tax items reflected in the effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2011.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash provided by operating activities increased by \$86 million in the first three months of 2012. In comparison to the prior-year period, the increase in cash provided by operating activities in the three months ended March 31, 2012 was principally due to a smaller increase in receivables in the first quarter of 2012, compared to the prior-year period, as well as an increase in net income in the first quarter of 2012 (net of non-cash items such as depreciation and amortization, share-based compensation expense and deferred income taxes).

Teradata s management uses a non-GAAP measure called free cash flow, which we define as net cash provided by operating activities less capital expenditures for property and equipment, and additions to capitalized software, as one measure of assessing the financial performance of the Company. Free cash flow does not have a uniform definition under GAAP; therefore, Teradata s definition of this measure may differ from the definition used by other companies. The components that are used to calculate free cash flow are GAAP measures taken directly from the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited). We believe that free cash flow information is useful for investors because it relates the operating cash flow of the Company to the capital that is spent to continue and improve business operations. In particular, free cash flow indicates the amount of cash available after certain capital expenditures, for among other things, investments in the Company s existing businesses, strategic acquisitions and repurchase of Teradata common stock. Free cash flow does not represent the residual cash flow available for discretionary expenditures since there may be other non-discretionary expenditures that are not deducted from the measure. This non-GAAP measure should not be considered a substitute for, or superior to, cash flows from operating activities under GAAP.

The table below shows net cash provided by operating activities and capital expenditures for the following periods:

	Three Months Ended		
	Marc	March 31,	
In millions	2012	2011	
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$ 192	\$ 106	
Less:			
Expenditures for property and equipment	(12)	(8)	
Additions to capitalized software	(18)	(19)	
Free cash flow	\$ 162	\$ 79	

Financing activities and certain other investing activities are not included in our calculation of free cash flow. There were no other investing activities in the first quarter of 2012. Other investing activities in the first three months of 2011 primarily consisted of Teradata s acquisition of Aprimo. Teradata s financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2012 consisted of proceeds from the Teradata Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) and the exercise of stock options, which totaled \$24 million for the three months ended March 31, 2012, and \$8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2011. These proceeds are included in Other financing activities, net in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Unaudited).

During the first three months of 2012, the Company did not repurchase any of its common stock. Share repurchases are made under the two share repurchase programs authorized by our Board of Directors in 2008. The first program (the dilution offset program) authorizes the Company to purchase Teradata common stock to the extent of cash received from the exercise of stock options and the Teradata Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) to offset dilution from shares issued pursuant to these plans. On February 6, 2012, the board approved a new, \$300 million share repurchase authorization to replace the prior \$300 million authorization that was to expire on February 10, 2012. As of March 31, 2012, the Company had \$300 million of authorization remaining on the general share

Table of Contents 46

18

Table of Contents

repurchase program to repurchase outstanding shares of Teradata common stock. Share repurchases made by the Company are reported on a trade date basis. Our share repurchase activity depends on factors such as our working capital needs, our cash requirements for capital investments, our stock price, and economic and market conditions.

Our total in cash and cash equivalents held outside the United States in various foreign subsidiaries was \$677 million as of March 31, 2012 and \$594 million as of December 31, 2011. The remaining balance held in the United States was \$301 million as of March 31, 2012 and \$178 million as of December 31, 2011. Under current tax laws and regulations, if cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments held outside the United States are distributed to the United States in the form of dividends or otherwise, we may be subject to additional U.S. income taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign tax credits) and foreign withholding taxes. As of March 31, 2012, we have not provided for the U.S. federal tax liability on approximately \$782 million of foreign earnings that are considered permanently reinvested outside of the United States.

As of March 31, 2012 the Company had no outstanding borrowings on the Credit Facility, and was in compliance with all covenants. The current credit facility expires in September 2012; the Company is currently negotiating for a new credit facility and expects to have it in place before expiration.

In April 2011, Teradata entered into a \$300 million five-year, unsecured term loan. The outstanding principal amount of the term loan agreement bears interest at a floating rate based upon a negotiated base rate or a Eurodollar rate plus in each case a margin based on the leverage ratio of the Company. As of March 31, 2012, the term loan principal outstanding was \$300 million, and carried an interest rate of 1.25%.

Management believes current cash and short-term investment resources, Company cash flows from operations and its \$300 million Credit Facility will be sufficient to satisfy future working capital, research and development activities, capital expenditures, pension contributions, and other financing requirements for at least the next twelve months. The Company principally holds its cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments in bank deposits and highly-rated money market funds.

The Company s ability to generate positive cash flows from operations is dependent on general economic conditions, competitive pressures, and other business and risk factors described in the Company s 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K (the 2011 Annual Report), and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report. If the Company is unable to generate sufficient cash flows from operations, or otherwise to comply with the terms of the credit facility and term loan agreement, the Company may be required to seek additional financing alternatives.

Contractual and Other Commercial Commitments. There has been no significant change in our contractual and other commercial commitments as described in the 2011 Annual Report. Our guarantees and product warranties are discussed in Note 7 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited).

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. In connection with the preparation of these financial statements, we are required to make assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and the related disclosure of contingent liabilities. These assumptions, estimates and judgments are based on historical experience and assumptions that are believed to be reasonable at the time. However, because future events and their effects cannot be determined with certainty, the determination of estimates requires the exercise of judgment. Our critical accounting policies are those that require assumptions to be made about matters that are highly uncertain. Different estimates could have a material impact on our financial results. Judgments and uncertainties affecting the application of these policies and estimates may result in materially different amounts being reported under different conditions or circumstances. Our management periodically reviews these estimates and assumptions to ensure that our financial statements are presented fairly and are materially correct.

19

Table of Contents

In many cases, the accounting treatment of a particular transaction is specifically dictated by GAAP and does not require significant management judgment in its application. There are also areas in which management s judgment in selecting among available alternatives would not produce a materially different result. The significant accounting policies and estimates that we believe are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial results are discussed in the 2011 Annual Report. Teradata s senior management has reviewed these critical accounting policies and related disclosures and determined that there were no significant changes in our critical accounting policies in the three months ended March 31, 2012. Also, there were no significant changes in our estimates associated with those policies.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See discussion in Note 2 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) for new accounting pronouncements.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

There have not been any material changes to the market risk factors previously disclosed in Part II, Item 7A of the Company s 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Teradata maintains a system of disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act)) that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in its reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including, as appropriate, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives.

Based on their evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance as of March 31, 2012.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the last fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Part II OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

The information required by this item is included in the material under Note 7 of Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

There have not been any material changes to the risk factors previously disclosed in Part I, Item IA of the Company s 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

Purchase of Company Common Stock

Teradata made no repurchases of its common stock during the first quarter of 2012. On February 6, 2012, the board approved a new, \$300 million share repurchase authorization to replace the prior \$300 million authorization that was to expire on February 10, 2012. As of March 31, 2012, the Company had \$300 million of authorization remaining on the general share repurchase program to repurchase outstanding shares of Teradata common stock.

Section 16 officers occasionally sell vested shares of restricted stock to the Company at the current market price to cover their withholding taxes. For the three months ended March 31, 2012, the total of these purchases was 36,170 shares at an average price of \$62.16 per share.

The following table provides information relating to the Company s share repurchase programs for the three months ended March 31, 2012:

				Total		
			Total	Number		
			Number	of		
			of	Shares		
			Shares	Purchased		
			Purchased	as Part	Maximum	Maximum
			as Part	of	Dollar Value	Dollar Value
			of	Publicly	that May Yet	that May Yet
		Average	Publicly	Announced	Be Purchased	Be Purchased
	Total	Price	Announced	General	Under the	Under the
	Number of	Paid	Dilution	Share	Dilution	General Share
	Shares	per	Offset	Repurchase	Offset	Repurchase
Month	Purchased	Share	Program	Program	Program	Program
January 2012		N/A			\$ 3,989,816	\$ 75,329,305
February 2012		N/A			\$ 19,586,427	\$ 300,000,000
March 2012		N/A			\$ 27,765,950	\$ 300,000,000
First Quarter Total		N/A			\$ 27,765,950	\$ 300,000,000

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None

Item 5. Other Information.

None

Item 6. Exhibits.

Reference Number

per Item 601 of

Regulation S-K Description

2.1 Form of Separation and Distribution Agreement between Teradata Corporation and NCR Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 11, 2007).

3.1

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Teradata Corporation, as amended and restated on September 24, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 25, 2007).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Teradata Corporation, as amended and restated on April 20, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 26, 2012).

21

3.2

Table of Contents

- 4.1 Common Stock Certificate of Teradata Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated November 13, 2007).
- 31.1 Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), dated May 4, 2012.
- 31.2 Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a), dated May 4, 2012.
- Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, dated May 4, 2012.
- Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T: (i) the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income for the three month periods ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, (ii) the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the three month periods ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, (iii) the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet at March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, (iv) the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the three month periods ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 and (v) the notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

22

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

TERADATA CORPORATION

Date: May 4, 2012

By: /s/ Stephen M. Scheppmann

Stephen M. Scheppmann

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

23